
 

 

 
 
 

Questions and Answers 
GROUP 1 
 
1 Reference L.102, Submission of Proposals, Factor II – Technical 
 The Government states, “The offerors shall provide the following information:… Page 
183 – a discussion of the extent of the participation of small and SDB concerns, in terms 
of their contribution (in terms of dollars/hours), compared to total acquisition.” 
Under normal circumstances, the Government never asks for or allows dollar amounts 
pertaining to the proposal to be presented in the technical proposal. 
Does the Government really want actual dollar amounts to be included in the technical 
proposal or does the Government actually want the percentage equivalent of the total 
acquisition? 
 ANSWER: Percentage equivalents. Amendment 0001 incorporates this change.  
 
 
2. Reference C-1.5.2.1, Supervision 
The Government states, “The site manager shall ensure that SP personnel use the Depot’s 
ISO 9002 Quality System in performance of their duties under this award.” 
The Government also states, “The NADEP’s quality program includes detailed 
procedures for each position in the organization. However, these detailed standard 
operating procedures (SOPs) are proprietary to the Government’s own bid and thus are 
not available.” Reference C-1.5.6.3, APP – Quality Control Program (QCP) 
The Government states, “The SP shall submit to the Government for approval a 
comprehensive Quality Control Program (QCP) (i.e., Quality Manual and SOPs) that 
document how it will implement and maintain QC throughout the period of performance. 
In paragraph C-1.5.6.3, the Government requires the SP to submit a Quality Control 
Program that consists of a Quality Manual and SOPs to document how it will implement 
and maintain QC throughout the period of performance. However, the Government has 
preempted the need for the SP to prepare a Quality Manual and SOPs in paragraph C-
1.5.2.1 by requiring SP personnel to “use the Depot’s ISO 9002 Quality System in 
performance of their duties under this award.” Since the Government insists on 
requiring the SP to use the NADEP Quality System, there is no need for the SP to submit 
a Quality Manual and SOPs because the SP’s quality system most likely would not be 
synonymous to the NADEP system. If the Government insists on the SP using the 
NADEP quality system, please clarify why the SP must submit a Quality Manual and 
SOPs? If the Government requires the SP to submit a QCP and also requires the SP to use 
the NADEP system, which system will take precedence? 
 
ANSWER: Reference C-1.5.2.1, the second paragraph has been revised. Amendment 
00001 incorporates this change. 
 
 
3. Reference paragraph C-3.3.14, Personal Safety Equipment 



 QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 
 AMENDMENT 00001  
 N68335-00-R-0477  

 2

The Government states, The Government shall provide to the SP expendable personal 
safety equipment (PSE) (e.g., ear plugs, safety glasses, and gloves) as appropriate in shop 
areas.” Reference paragraph C-4.2.4, Personal Safety Equipment 
The Government states, “The SP will provide durable PSE (e.g., protective footwear) to 
SP personnel.” 
 
In each instance the Government has provided examples of what PSE the Government 
will provide and what the SP will provide. However, the PSE examples provided are only 
a small portion of the types of PSE that might be required to perform the work under 
contract. Is the SP only required to furnish protective footwear? If not, please identify 
exactly what PSE will be provided by the Government to allow the SP to appropriately 
price the contract. 
ANSWER: For this PWS, the SP is only required to furnish protective footwear. 
 
 
4. Reference paragraph C-5.1.2, Key Terms 
The Government states, “Lot: This measure defines how often… a quality review of the 
PA’s activities, services, or products.” What is the meaning of the acronym “PA”? Did 
the Government actually mean to use the acronym “SP”? 
ANSWER: Yes, the Government meant to use “SP”. Amendment 00001 incorporates 
this change.  
 
 
5. Reference paragraph C-5.1.3 
The Government states, “The following rules apply throughout the Material Division 
operations… performance of the services in this PWS. SP personnel shall:… Perform 
each operation in a safe and orderly fashion in accordance with NADEP standard 
operating procedures.” Again, as previously stated in Question 2, the successful SP will 
develop standard operating procedures to perform the tasks under their control to meet 
the Government’s performance requirements. Therefore, it is recommended that this 
statement be rephrased as follows: 
 
“Perform each operation, as appropriate, in safe and orderly fashion in accordance with 
NADEP or NADEP-approved standard operating procedures.” 
ANSWER: Reference C-5.1.3 has been revised. Amendment 00001 incorporates the 
change. 
 
 
6. Reference paragraph C-1.3, Summary Scope of Work 
The Government states, “The Service Provider (SP) shall satisfy the three major 
functional requirements below in support of the NADEP’s Production Department.” 
Based on this statement, it is assumed that the SP will be responsible only for the material 
management services associated with the Production Department and will not be 
responsible for material management services associated with other activities at NADEP 
such as facilities operations and maintenance or other general supply material support 
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activities necessary to support other NADEP or Marine Corp Air Station operational 
elements. Please clarify whether or not this assumption is valid. 
 
If this assumption is not valid, who will be performing the facilities operations and 
maintenance and general supply and equipment support efforts at NADEP? Will the SP 
and the entity performing this effort share the same facilities such as receiving, 
distribution, and storage areas? If the SP and the general supply entity share the same 
facilities, how does the Government intend to separate authorities and responsibilities? 
 
If this assumption is not valid, it is requested that the Government revise the 
aforementioned statement and the scope of work to include the general supply 
requirements and provide a more detailed breakdown of the workload data to distinguish 
between production and facilities operations and maintenance and general supply and 
equipment material support activities.  
ANSWER: Reference C-1.3, the words “Production Department” have been deleted. 
Amendment 00001 incorporates the change. 
 
 
7. Reference paragraph C-1.5.4.1, Normal Depot Operating Hours 
The Government states, “Normal depot operating hours are Monday – Friday… and from 
1530-2345 (i.e., night shift regular hours or 2nd shift). The SP shall perform almost all… 
during the 1st shift. The exception is for one requirement, Perform Cycle Counts (C-5.4.4) 
on either 2nd or 3rd shift, whichever lends itself to be most productive.” 
The exception indicates that cycle counts will be performed on either 2nd or 3rd shift. Will 
the Government schedule the cycle counts and provide advanced notice to the SP or will 
the Government allow the SP to have flexibility to coordinate the cycle count schedules 
with the Government and manage their personnel to achieve the most productive result? 
Please clarify the Government’s intent. 
ANSWER: The SP will have the flexibility to coordinate the cycle counts schedules with 
the Government and manage their personnel to achieve the most productive result. 
  
 
8. Reference paragraph C-1.5.6.1, Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan (QASP) 
The Government states, “The Government will monitor customer satisfaction.” 
 
The Government is requiring the SP to establish an ISO 9000 registered quality system at 
NADEP. An integral requirement of a complaint, registered ISO 9000 quality system is 
customer satisfaction surveys. Based on this statement, is the Government assuming total 
responsibility for customer satisfaction surveys and precluding the SP from conducting 
their own independent surveys or is the Government just making the statement to inform 
the SP that they will be conducting surveys in addition to those conducted by the SP? 
Please clarify.  
ANSWER: Section C-1.5.6.1 – See revised section C-1.5.6. Amendment 00001 
incorporates the change. 
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9. Reference paragraph C-1.5.6.2, SP Quality Control 
The Government states, “As noted in C-1.5, the SP shall either be ISO 9001 (Rev 1994), 
ISO 9002 (Rev 1994), or ISO 9001 (2000) registered for the work required. This ensures 
that the SP will be a co-equal participant in the accomplishment of the NADEP mission. 
For the requirements…, the SP shall develop and implement a comprehensive quality 
control program that is also compliant with its ISO registration. In doing so, the SP shall 
have a Quality Manual and appropriate standard operating procedures for the work 
described in this PWS.” When referring to “its” ISO registration, does “its” refer to the 
Government or the SP? 
 
The Government has required the SP to be registered either by ISO 9001 (Rev 1994), ISO 
9002 (Rev 1994), or ISO 9001 (Rev 2000) for the work required at NADEP Cherry Point 
(NADEPCP), NC. It is important to note that no one except the MEO can claim 
registration under any of these standards for the NADEPCP-specific work required under 
the RFP. Every site has its unique characteristics and way of doing business (i.e., the 
NADEP SOPs). Commercial SPs can claim generic or common registration for similar 
processes, but not exact to those at NADEPCP. The decision by the Government to 
withhold the NADEP SOPs as proprietary restricts the ability of the SPs to develop a 
comprehensive Quality Manual, SOPs, and other required documentation necessary to 
become compliant and subsequently registered to a specified ISO 9000 standard. 
 
Furthermore, it is important to note that the ISO 9001 (Rev 1994) and ISO 9002 (Rev 
1994) registration options allowed by the Government are in essence obsolete. The ISO 
TC176 standards committee issued the final ISO 9001:2000 quality standard in 
December 2000. The final ISO 9001:2000 standard has effectively incorporated the ISO 
9001, ISO 9002, and ISO 9003 standards into one standard. As directed by the 
International Organization of Standards Registration Accreditation Board (RAB), entities 
not currently registered to an ISO standard are required to gain registration under ISO 
9001:2000. In addition, entities currently registered to the ISO 9001, ISO 9002, or ISO 
9003 standards are allowed a maximum of three year from the date of issue of the final 
ISO 9001:2000 standard or the time remaining on their current registration (not to exceed 
three years from the final ISO 9001:2000 standard issue date) to revise their quality 
system and gain registration under the ISO 9001:2000 standard. If they do not meet these 
time frames, their registration is revoked. 
 
This is where the problem lies. The Government is in essence allowing the MEO or SP 
(whoever becomes the successful competitor) to propose and use a quality system that 
will have to be revised and reregistered under the ISO 9001:2000 standard shortly after 
contract start. For instance, the MEO received their ISO 9002 registration on November 
19, 1999. Therefore, if the MEO is the successful competitor, the MEO must confirm 
their ISO 9002 quality system to the ISO 9001 (2000) standard and gain registration 
under the standard no later than November 19, 2002 – approximately 45 days after 
contract start. There are several new clauses in the new ISO 9001:2000 that will have to 
be addressed before conformance to the standard is possible. Once the new clauses are 
addressed, appropriate SOPs are developed, the quality system is revised, and personnel 
are trained, a pre-assessment must be conducted to ensure compliance with the new 
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standard before the ISO registrar is scheduled to conduct the registration audit. All of this 
takes time and no one, including the MEO, can accomplish this in 45 days. The same 
situation most likely exists for all commercial competitors as well. If the Government 
allows the requirement as stated to remain in the RFP, the continuity and effectiveness of 
the NADEP mission could be put at risk. 
 
As a result, it is recommended that the Government reconsider their position on allowing 
ISO 9001 (Rev 1994), ISO 9002 (Rev 1994), or ISO 9001:2000 registration and restrict it 
to the new ISO 9001:2000 standard with the following stipulations. 
 
1. The SP will provide proof of registration for ISO 9001 (Rev 1994), ISO 9002 (Rev 

1994), or ISO 9001:2000 with the proposal for the type or similar type of work 
required under contract. 

2. The SP (commercial and MEO) will provide a draft Quality Manual with the proposal 
that addresses the ISO 9001:2000 standard and provide a revised Quality Manual to 
the Contracting Officer for review and approval that complies with the new ISO 
9001:2000 standard by the end of the transition period or contract start date. 

3. The SP will provide a schedule with the proposal that fully delineates the registration 
process and a timeline that delineates the time required to gain ISO 9001:2000 
registration for the NADEPCP quality system. The maximum timeframe allowed for 
the SP to gain registration will not exceed 12 months after the date of the award. 

ANSWER: Section C-1.5.6.2 - See revised section C-1.5.6. Amendment 00001 
incorporates this change. 
 
10. Reference paragraph C-3.1.1, Joint Inventory 
 The Government states, “The Government and SP shall conduct a joint inventory of GFE 
and GFF at the start of this award.” The Government also states in paragraph C- 1.5.10, 
Transition Period, that “commencement of the transition may be up to 180 calendar days 
after the award.” 
 
Based on the statements in C-3.1.1 and C-1.5.10, the Government seems to indicate that 
the SP can initiate the joint inventory as much as 180 days prior to the contract start date. 
Does the Government actually mean this or should the statement in paragraph C-3.1.1 be 
changed to read – The Government and SP shall conduct a joint inventory of GFE and 
GFF during the transition period. Please clarify the Government’s intent. 
ANSWER: C-3.1.1. The first sentence has been changed to read: 
“The Government and SP shall conduct a joint inventory of GFE and GFF during the 
transition period.” Amendment 00001 incorporates this change.  
 
 
11. Reference paragraph C-3.1.5, Shared Property 
The Government states, “In performance of this award, the SP shall have access to other 
GFE, GFF, and GFM including, but not limited to office space, copiers, printers, and fax 
machines. The equipment is “common usage” (i.e., more than one SP uses such property 
at the same time). As such, the SP shall plan accordingly and recognize that such 
equipment may not always be free from other use (i.e., available or operational).” 
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Based on this statement, it is assumed that the words “other GFE, GFF, and GFM” 
indicate that this GFE, GFF, and GFM are in addition to the GFE, GFF, and GFM listed 
in Technical Exhibit 2 (TE-2). Is the Shared Property addressed in this paragraph in 
addition to that listed in TE-2 or is shared property included in TE-2? If shared property 
is also listed in TE-2, please identify which is shared property. 
ANSWER: The heading in C-3.1.5 has been changed to read “Community Property”. 
Amendment 00001 incorporates this change. 
 
 
12. Reference paragraph C-5.1.1, Requirements 
The Government states, “Generally Material Services performs its work in the following 
locations: 
 

Building No. Name 
84 Plant Maintenance  
133 Engine Rework 
159 Supply/Fleet Readiness Action Group/Storage 
137 Aircraft Rework 
154 Supply 
163 Administrative Services 
1375 Aviation Storehouse 
1798 Packing and Preservation Facility 
4224 V/STOL Rework Facility 
Trailers 14 and 15 Hazardous Material 
Trailer 26 F-4 Strategic Business Unit 

 
The Government has indicated that there buildings are “generally” where the Material 
Services are performed, but the Government has not indicated which Material Services 
set forth in the performance work statement are performed in each of these buildings. In 
order to allow the SP to gain a greater understanding of the performance work statement 
as it applies in each of these buildings, it is requested that the Government provide a 
detailed breakdown of the Material Services that occur in each building. 
ANSWER: This table (C-3.1.5) has been revised. Amendment 00001 incorporates this 
change. 
 
13. Reference paragraph C-5.3.1, Scope of Work 
The Government states, “G records are maintained accurately.” What are “G” records? 
This statement does not indicate “who” will maintain “G” records accurately. Should the 
statement read – “The SP shall maintain “G” records accurately?” Please clarify. 
The Government also states, “To maintain financial records, the SP shall reconcile 
material financial records and material cost estimates including validation and correction 
of obligations against funds, as necessary.” In paragraph C-5.3.6.1, Requirements, the 
Government states, “To maintain financial records, the SP shall perform the following 
tasks: 
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 • Manage core turn-ins. The SP shall maintain a carcass tracking program to include all 
Navy and Air Force repairables. This shall include verifying and validating bills and 
maintaining traceability of individual components. What does this have to do with 
maintaining financial records? Please clarify. 
 • Prepare aircraft, engine material standards. What does this have to do with maintaining 
financial records? Please clarify. 
 • Prepare Depot Maintenance Inter-service Support Agreement (DMISA) material price 
outs. 
 • Prepare component material cost estimates. 
 • Perform expenditure reconciliation of each PEB.” 
The statements in the two cited paragraphs seem to conflict with each other. In addition, 
the terminology Air Force appears for the first time in the RFP. Is the term Air Force 
referring to the US Air Force or the Navy and Marine Air Corp or both? Please clarify. 
The Government also uses the word “bills.” Is the word “bills” synonymous with 
“invoices” or does it mean bills of lading or both? Please clarify. 
It is requested that the Government review these paragraphs thoroughly and determine 
the actual scope of work associated with the “Maintain Financial Data” requirement and 
make these paragraph consistent so as to eliminate any misinterpretation. 
ANSWER: Reference C-5.3.1. Second paragraph has been revised. Amendment 00001 
incorporates this change. 
 
 
14. References paragraph C-5.3.2.1 Requirements 
The Government states, “To update databases the SP shall perform the following task: 
 “Update databases for aircraft, engines, components, hazardous materials (HAZMAT) 
and indirect materials, and NIMMS, TIMA, SERMIS, and HMMS, Compass Contract, 
and other databases as required”. 
 
Is the Compass Contract a database? If so, provide detailed description of the database 
and identify where and how it will be used within the Material Services requirement. 
Paragraph C-7.2, Forecast, provides the projected workload for the current year (90,295), 
Base year (90,295), 2nd year (90,295) and the out years (270,885) of the contract and 
describes the workload indicators as ”# of databases updated and # of appropriate 
material records reviewed and updated”. The “# of databases updated” indicator seems to 
infer that a total of 90,295 different databases will be updated each year. Since the 
Government has identified five actual databases in paragraph C-5.3.2.1 and the rest as 
other databases, is the Government indicating that other databases encompass a total of 
90,290 databases or does the Government actually mean that a combined total of 90,295 
record update actions will take place throughout each contract year for all databases? If 
the number is the total number of update actions taken during the year, it is requested that 
the Government attribute the number of update actions for each specific database to assist 
the SP in appropriately staffing the update databases requirement. The number provided 
is basically worthless without attributing the actions to each database. 
 
The indicator, “# of appropriate material records reviewed and updated”, seems to 
indicate that 90,295 different records are reviewed and updated each year, which also 
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seems to indicate that 90,295 new records are built each year and updated throughout the 
year. However, the performance work statement contains no requirement for the SP to 
build the initial database records. If the SP is not required to build the initial records, who 
will be responsible? If the SP is required to build the initial database records as well as 
update them, what is the average number of new records, by database, that will be built 
each year? 
 
The Government only indicates that the SP will update the Tool Room Inventory 
Management Application (TIMA) and the Hazardous Material Management System 
(HMMS). Is this the only involvement, the SP will have with the day-to-day operational 
aspects of NADEP tool rooms and HAZMAT FACILITIES? If the SP will be involved in 
other aspects of tool room activities and HAZMAT facilities, please full describe the 
extent of the SP’s involvement. 
ANSWER: Reference C-5.3.1, a definition for Compass Contract to C-2, has been 
added. Amendment 00001 incorporates appropriate changes. 
 
 
15. Reference C-1.5.2.6 Use of Drugs and Alcohol 
The Government states that all depot personnel including SP personnel are subject to 
urinalysis testing. We agree with this sentence. However, the policies of our company 
will dictate the use of this testing and conditions when management will exercise this 
policy. We have a certified laboratory that conducts our analyses, therefore we may or 
may not want to use the Government laboratories for the analysis. Would the 
Government rephrase this statement to allow the SP the options to chose? 
ANSWER: The SP may perform its own urinalyses as part of its drug-free workplace 
program. 
 
 
16. Reference C-1.5.2.3 Minimum Operator Qualifications 
The first sentence of this reference implies that “all” SP personnel shall be proficient in 
using MS Office applications. Obviously not “all” SP personnel will require these skills 
in the performance of their duties. Please clarify.* 
ANSWER: The first sentence of C-1.5.2.3 has been deleted. Amendment 00001 has 
incorporates the change. 
 
 
17. There are numerous content requirements associated with the preparation and 
submittal of the Award Performance Plan and proposal submittal requirements that are 
redundant. 
ANSWER: The Government has removed the requirement for an Award Performance 
Plan. Amendment 00001 incorporates this change. 
 
 
18.  Reference paragraph C-1.5.3.1, Organization Chart 
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 The last sentence of the requirement refers to “…requirements of the 
addition/substitution of essential personnel clause (see Solicitation Section H)”. Would 
the Government please specify exactly where this clause might be found? 
ANSWER: This sentence has been deleted from the PWS. Amendment 0001 
incorporates this change. 


